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ABOUT CGCC
CGCC’s Story
Credit Guarantee Corpora�on of Cambodia Plc. (CGCC) is a state-owned enterprise established by a Sub-Decree
No. 140 ANKR. BK dated 1st September 2020. CGCC is operated under the technical and ﬁnancial guidance of the

Vision
To be the preferred credit guarantee institution in Cambodia to improve ﬁnancial
inclusion and develop the growth of SMEs
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Ministry of Economy and Finance (MEF). CGCC was incorporated on 3rd November 2020 and have been receiving
technical support from ADB, WB and UNCDF. CGCC launches the ﬁrst guarantee scheme on 29th March 2021.

Mission
CGCC’s mission is to provide credit guarantees to lenders on loans made to
businesses based on international standards to share the risk with lenders
and to improve ﬁnancial inclusion.
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Performance
Financial Highlights

Total Assets
207,132,706 USD

Total Liability
402,914 USD

Total Equity
206,729,792 USD

Net Income
7,661,172 USD

Key Figures of Guarantees

Total Le�er of
Guarantee: 194

SME: 95%
Large-ﬁrm: 5%

Total loan amount:
KHR 8.8 billion
USD 19.47 million

Women-Owned:
22.5%

Sector:

4%

Agriculture

11%

Industry

80%

Others

03

CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021

5%

Service

Guarantee Progress
As of 31 December 2021

Loan Amount = 21.6 million USD equi

Le�er of Guarantee (LG) = 194

Guaranteed Loan by Month
3.5mil
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1.0mil
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Apr '21 May '21 Jun '21

Jul '21 Aug '21 Sep '21 Oct '21 Nov '21 Dec '21

Loan Amount

1.0mil

.4mil

2.7mil

3.1mil

3.0mil

3.2mil

1.8mil

3.2mil

3.2mil

Number of LG

1

1

16

33

18

28

18

44

35

*Exchange rate: USD1 = KHR4,074
KHR Loan

៛

Total Guaranteed Loan

USD Loan
Guaranteed
Amount 6.5bil

Unguaranteed
Amount 2.2bil

8.8bil

$
Total Guaranteed Loan

Guaranteed
Amount 14.11mil

Unguaranteed
Amount 5.36mil

19.47mil

LG Cancella�on

2021
Total

August

1

70,000

December

1

25,000

2

USD 95,000
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Geographical Coverage
2
4

7

Siem Reap
12 / 6%

0

2

2

Phnom Penh
55 / 28%

11

9

1

Ba�ambang
15 / 8%

2

3

6

2

Kampong Thom
14 / 7%

5

7

6

9

Prey Veng
15 / 8%

Loan Size in KHR

Loan Size in USD

Min = 40mil KHR
Max = 1.4mil KHR
Average = 350mil KHR
1

Min = 10K USD
Max = 1mil USD
Average = 115K USD

<=40mil

88

6

>40mil-100mil

3

37

>100mil-200mil
>200mil-500mil
>500mil-1000mil

1

>1000mil-4000mil
0

2

4

6

>50K-100K

26

9
5

<=50K

8

>100K-200K

7

>200K-300K

6

>300K-500K

5

>500K-1M
0

10

20

Loan Facility
200

150

100

100

50

50

8

Overdraft

1

Trade Facility Term Loan
(CFGS)
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47
1
Investment/Business
Expansion

Type of Loan
45

Women-owned

37
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Secured loans

Capital Expenditure
(CFGS)

Type of Borrower
9

185

157
Non women-owned

100

146

0
Working Capital

Term Loan

Gender

149

80

200

180

5

60

Loan Purpose

150

0

40

Unsecured loans

Large Firm

SME

Milestones
3 August 2020
Approval from
Samdech Prime Minister on
CGCC’s conceptual framework

1 September 2020
Sub-decree on establishment
of CGCC

3 November 2020
CGCC’s incorpora�on
(MOC Registra�on)

29 March 2021
Launching of Business Recovery
Guarantee Scheme (BRGS)

29 March 2021
1st Batch Par�cipa�ng
Financial Ins�tu�ons (PFIs)

23 April 2021
1st Le�er of Guarantee (LG)
issuance

29 June 2021
2nd Batch PFIs

22 September 2021

Launching of CFGS

22 September 2021
3rd Batch PFIs

5 November 2021
VAT exemp�on
on Guarantee Fee

10 December 2021
4th Batch PFIs
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Chairman’s Remarks

H.E. Ros Seilava

Secretary of State of the Ministry of Economy and Finance

I believe that CGCC will be a critical government
tool to support businesses thriving through
this challenging time in the immediate term
and drive SMEs development in the medium
to long term.

2021 is a recovery year for Cambodia in economic development and social progress. Despite the lingering COVID-19
pandemic, the Cambodian economy has been brought back to the growth path resul�ng in a 3% growth in 2021
compared to a nega�ve growth of 3.1% in 2020, thanks to eﬀec�ve Government economic and health measures and
the contribu�ons from stakeholders including the private sector and development partners.
To support businesses during the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Credit Guarantee Corpora�on of Cambodia (CGCC) was
set up as a part of the Government’s recovery plan under the Ministry of Economy and Finance with the technical
support from our Development Partners, including Asian Development Bank (ADB), United Na�ons Capital Development
Fund (UNCDF), and World Bank. I believe that CGCC will be a cri�cal government tool to support businesses thriving
through this challenging �me in the immediate term and drive SME development in the medium to long term.
While having a strong commitment to support CGCC, the Government also has a high expecta�on from CGCC to
support the country’s economic recovery. CGCC must build a solid founda�on for the business ac�vi�es in the ﬁrst
year of opera�on, including the management team, opera�onal manual, risk management, partnership with banks
and microﬁnance ins�tu�ons, internal rules and guidelines, and IT infrastructure.
CGCC would not be able to create any posi�ve impact on the economy without contribu�ons from relevant stakeholders.
I would like to e xtend my sincere apprecia�on to all stakeholders, including relevant Government authori�es,
Development Partners, Par�cipa�ng Financial Ins�tu�ons (PFIs), and the business communi�es, for suppor�ng CGCC
establishment and business opera�on.
On behalf of the Board, we would like to express our apprecia�on to the management team under the leadership of
Mr. Wong Keet Loong, CEO of CGCC, for se�ng up the company and launching the guarantee schemes during the
pandemic.
Lastly, I would like to extend my utmost apprecia�on to my fellow Board Members, Management, and CGCC employees
for their con�nuous dedica�on.
CGCC looks forward to strengthening coopera�on with all stakeholders to expand credit guarantees to support ﬁnancial
inclusion and develop SMEs in Cambodia. Thank you.
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CEO’s Remarks

Mr. Wong Keet Loong
Chief Execu�ve Oﬃcer

I came to Cambodia in late September 2020 during the
pandemic when most countries were having lockdowns and
economic activities were badly aﬀected. I was appointed as the
CEO of CGCC on 1st October 2020 to set up the company for the
Ministry of Economy and Finance (MEF). The setting up of CGCC
was part of the Royal Government of Cambodia’s policy
response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The objective of
CGCC is to mitigate the impacts of the pandemic on
businesses and promote the development of MSMEs
in the long term.

The policy framework for CGCC was developed by the General Department of Policy, MEF and the policy targets are:
1. To help viable businesses access to formal financing and,
2. To ensure sustainability of the CGCC’s operations ie.
• Credit additionality : incremental credit flow that would not be feasible without the credit guarantee scheme
• Economic additionality : the economic productivity gain and job creation at business level attributable to more
investments
• Operational sustainability : ability of CGCC to self-support its own operations from its annual guarantee fees and
acceptable level of default rate
The strategic plan drawn up for CGCC encompasses 3 stages of the company lifecycle and its milestones.
STAGE 1
Development/Start-Up
2021 - 2022

STAGE 2
Growth
2023 - 2027

STAGE 3
Expansion
Beyond 2027

Initial capital injection of
$200mil from MEF

New guarantee products /
schemes to be launched to
increase the guarantee base

Expanding distribu�on
channels of guarantees by
collabora�ng with private
sectors that support SMEs

Selection and hiring of
Management team and key
supporting staff

Full compliance of the
principles of governance
recommended by the
World Bank for a credit guarantee
establishment

Providing business advisory
services as a new stream of
revenue

Development and implementa�on
of CGCC core IT system

Guarantee fees to be on
risk-based pricing

Providing direct loans to
nonbankable SMEs due to
lack of track record but are
viable businesses

CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Establishing CGCC’s market
presence amongst FIs and SME
associa�ons

Risk management framework
in place

Entry of new shareholders from
the private sector of FIs to have
a mixed ownership of CGCC

Building up the customer base
of SMEs via guarantees issued

Digital innova�on on products
and services

Lis�ng of CGCC as a Public
Listed Company

Nominal rate of guarantee fees
to support the priority sectors
during the pandemic period

New capital injec�on to
maintain an acceptable
Guarantee Reserve Ra�o (GRR)

Issuance of Bonds in the capital
market

Gradual growth of guaranteed
loans as the Fls and SMEs are not
familiar with the guarantee
mechanism and demand for
loans may be low

Se�ng up of CGCC branches to
serve and outreach to nonbankable
SMEs

ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2021
• Capital injection of $200mil in February
• Board of Directors, Board Committees, Procurement Committee, and Executive Committee were established.
Necessary departments/units were set up, and all key Heads of Departments were recruited
• A manual operating system was developed to kick start the operations of CGCC
• Launched our first guarantee scheme, $200mil Business Recovery Guarantee Scheme (BRGS) in March
• First Letter of Guarantee (LG) issued in April for $1.0mil loan
• Launched 2nd scheme in September, $50mil Co-Financing Guarantee Scheme (CFGS) to support the SME Bank’s
Co-Financing scheme phase II
• Total number of participating FIs (PFIs) is 20 comprising of 15 commercial banks, 3 MDIs and 2 MFIs.
• No. of LGs issued as of 31 December was 194 amounting to $21.6mil.
OUTLOOK FOR 2022
In 2022, CGCC will con�nue to gain momentum as the economic ac�vi�es improve and the demand for loans will be
higher. PFIs will be more prepared with be�er understanding of structuring guaranteed loans. CGCC will work closely with
PFIs to promote guaranteed loans to improve ﬁnancial inclusion by having joint roadshows to several provinces.
Our core system, the Credit Guarantee Management System will be completed to improve the guarantee application
process, issuance of LGs and monthly reporting of guaranteed loans between PFIs and CGCC. Our first steps towards
digitalizing our processes.
CGCC will play a key role under the technical guidance of the MEF to support the economic growth of various sectors
with the credit guarantee to spur higher credit/financing for the sectors.
New guarantee schemes will be developed with its focus on achieving some of the goals of Cambodia’s Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).
As Cambodia will be the Chair of ASEAN in 2022, CGCC will make its introduc�on to the other credit guarantee organiza�ons
in ASEAN countries including Korea and Japan. We will take the opportunity to learn the development of credit
guarantee in their respective countries to be adopted at CGCC.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
2021 was CGCC’s first year of operations. A lot of effort was put in for the credit guarantee to be operational.
Despite the challenges faced during the pandemic, CGCC was established and launched.
With this, I sincerely thank all our stakeholders, the Royal Government of Cambodia, MEF, other Ministries, National
Bank of Cambodia, our strategic development partners eg. Asian Development Bank, World Bank, United Nations
Development Program, United Nations Capital Development Fund, our PFIs who are our key partners in providing
guaranteed loans to accomplish our objectives, and our Board of Directors for their sound counsel. Last but not
least, my colleagues for their commitment, dedication and belief in being part of nation building.
Many thanks
Wong Keet Loong
Chief Executive Officer

09

CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Board of Directors’ Profile
H.E. Ros Seilava is currently a Secretary of State of the Ministry of
Economy and Finance, Secretary General of the General Secretariat
of the Public Financial Management Reform Program Steering Commi�ee,
and a Member of the Supreme Na�onal Economic Council. He also
serves as Chairman of the Agricultural and Rural Development Bank.
He joined the Ministry of Economy and Finance in 1994.

H.E. Ros Seilava
Chairman

From 2006-2008, he was an Advisor to the Execu�ve Director of the
World Bank in Washington D.C. He received his BA in Social Science
from Penza’s Ins�tute of the Pedagogy, the former USSR, in
1987-1992. In 2002, he obtained his Master of Interna�onal Aﬀairs
(MIA) in Economic Policy Management from Columbia University,
New York, USA.

H.E. Dr. Mey Vann is currently a Secretary of State of the Ministry of
Economy and Finance and the Secretary General of the General
Secretariat of the Non-Bank Financial Services Authority. He started
his career with the Ministry of Economy and Finance in 1994. In
1999, he was appointed as an assistant to a Secretary of State of the
ministry.
He was promoted to be the Director of the Financial Industry
Department in 2002 and the Director General in 2013. He completed
his Ph.D. in Business Administra�on at PRESTONE University in the
U.S. in 2009 and received his master’s degree in Poli�cal Economy
from D’AUVERGNE University in France, and a bachelor’s degree in
Economics and Business Law in Cambodia.

H.E. Dr. Mey Vann

H.E. Yea Bunna is currently the Under Secretary of State of the
Ministry of Industry, Science, Technology and Innova�on. Base on
his experiences in improving produc�vity for Micro, Small, and
Medium Enterprises, he was assigned to be a member of the Board
of Directors of Credit Guarantee Corpora�on of Cambodia.

H.E. Yea Bunna

H.E. Yea Bunna has more than 20 years of experience in the Manufacturing
Industry and MSME development sector as well as Foreign Direct
Investment promo�on; H.E. Yea Bunna obtained his master’s degree in
Business Administra�on, majoring in Finance at the Na�onal University
of Management in Cambodia in 2006 and received a bachelor’s
degree of Economic Science at the former Faculty of Economics of
Cambodia in 1989.
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Mr. Kith Sovannarith is currently the First Deputy Director General of Banking
Supervision, Na�onal Bank of Cambodia (NBC). He started his career at NBC
in 1998. In 2011 he was posted as Advisor to Execu�ve Director of Southeast
Asia Vo�ng Group of Interna�onal Monetary Fund based in Washington
D.C.

Mr. Kith Sovannarith

Upon returning to the NBC in 2013, he was promoted to Deputy Director
of Onsite Supervision. Mr. Kith Sovannarith is also the chairman of the
Ins�tute of Banking and Finance (IBF). Mr. Kith Sovannarith holds a Bachelor
of Commerce (Economics and Finance) from Deakin University in Australia,
and a Master of Science in Professional Banking and Finance from University
of Luxembourg in Luxembourg.

Mr. Sok Voeun is currently the Chief Execu�ve Oﬃcer of LOLC (Cambodia)
Plc. He is also a member of the Cer�ﬁed Management Accountant (CMA),
a member of the Ins�tute of Public Accountants, and the chairman of the
Cambodia Microﬁnance Associa�on.
Mr. Sok Voeun has more than 20 years of experience in microﬁnance
sectors and banks; covering digital and product development, leadership,
and management over credit, risk, ﬁnance, and human resource. Mr. Sok
Voeun obtained his master’s degree in Business Administra�on, majoring
in Finance and Banking, from Build Bright University in Cambodia in 2005
and a bachelor’s degree in Economic Science in Management of Enterprise
at the former Faculty of Law and Economics in 2000.

Mr. Sok Voeun
Mr. Wong Keet Loong is the Chief Execu�ve Oﬃcer of CGCC. He has more
than 25 years of Banking experience in Retail and Commercial Banking. He
joined CGCC on 1st October 2020 to set up the company. Prior to joining
CGCC, he was at CGC Malaysia for 5.5 years in Sales & Business Development,
structuring credit guarantee schemes and promo�ng the growth of SME’s
access to ﬁnancing.
He has a vast experience in credit guarantees and has been invited to share
his experience in Sri Lanka, Zimbabwe, Indonesia, and neighboring countries.
Mr. KL Wong is also a member of the Associa�on of Chartered Cer�ﬁed
Accountants (ACCA) since 1994.

Mr. Wong Keet Loong
Mr. No Lida is the Deputy Chief Execu�ve Oﬃcer of CGCC. He started his
career with the Ministry of Economy and Finance in 2007. He was promoted
to be the Deputy Director of the Financial Market and Ins�tu�ons Department
of the General Department of Financial Industry in 2017.
He formulated and implemented various policies to support the ﬁnancial
sector development. He was also a member of the ASEAN+3 Taskforce to
enhance Cambodia’s regional ﬁnancial integra�on with the rest of
ASEAN+3 countries. He received a Master in Public Administra�on from
Lee Kuan Yew School of Public Policy in Singapore and a Master of Interna�onal
Studies from Yonsei University in the Republic of Korea.

Mr. No Lida
11

CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CGCC Organizational Structure
as of Dec 2021

MEF (Shareholder)

Audit Commi�ee
Board of Directors
Risk Management
Commi�ee
Chief Execu�ve
Oﬃcer

Personal Assistant
(vacant)

Deputy CEO

Director of Risk
Management &
Compliance
Department

Manager, Risk
Management &
Compliance

Director of Strategy
and Business
Development
Department (DCEO)

Deputy
Manager
of Product
Development

Manager of
Marke�ng &
Business
Development

Senior
Execu�ve,
Marke�ng and
Communica�on

Director of Centralized
Opera�ons Department
(Vacant)

Director of
Finance &
Business Analy�cs
Department

Director of Informa�on
Technology Services
Department

Senior Manager,
Legal and Company
Secretariat
Department

Deputy Manager,
Human Capital &
Administra�on

Manager, Centralized
Opera�ons

Senior
Execu�ve,
Credit
Administra�on

Director of Human
Capital &
Administra�on
Department

Senior
Execu�ve,
FBA

Execu�ve, Human
Capital &
Administra�on

Senior
Execu�ve,
ITS

Senior
Execu�ve,
Credit
Administra�on

Senior
Execu�ve,
ITS

Senior
Execu�ve,
Credit
Administra�on

Execu�ve,
ITS

Senior
Execu�ve,
Procurement

Execu�ve,
Credit
Administra�on
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Management Team

Chief Execu�ve Oﬃcer
Mr. KL Wong has more than 25 years of Banking experience in Retail
and Commercial Banking. He joined CGCC on 1st October 2020 to set
up the company. Prior to joining CGCC, he was at CGC Malaysia for 5.5
years in Sales & Business Development.
He has vast experience in credit guarantees and has been invited to
share his experience in Sri Lanka, Zimbabwe, Indonesia, and neighboring
countries. He is also a member of ACCA since 1994.

Mr. Wong Keet Loong
Deputy Chief Execu�ve Oﬃcer
Prior to his role at CGCC, Mr. No Lida worked for the General Department
of Financial Industry of the Ministry of Economy and Finance for
over 10 years. He formulated and implemented various policies to
support the ﬁnancial sector development.
He received a Master in Public Administra�on from Lee Kuan Yew
School of Public Policy in Singapore and a Master of Interna�onal
Studies from Yonsei University in the Republic of Korea.

Mr. No Lida
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Director of Finance and Business Analy�cs Department
Mr. Nhim Soriya has 15+ years of experience in accoun�ng and ﬁnance
func�ons of local and internal businesses in Cambodia and Myanmar.
He is skilled in numerous ﬁelds including budge�ng and cash ﬂow
management, ﬁnancial and management reports, monitoring
accounts and credit control, employment laws/contracts, business
contracts, taxa�on, compliance, policies development, and business
process re-engineering.
He holds a Bachelor of Business Administra�on and is an ACCA aﬃliate
and a cer�ﬁed Tax Agent.

Mr. Nhim Soriya
Director of IT Service Department
Prior to joining CGCC, Mr. Sokbou has over 13 years of experience
working in the banking industry in various management and opera�ons
roles, managing over 100 technical employees to maintain ABA
bank, one of top Cambodia’s banks, system secure, compliant, and
running 24/7 in accordance with standard IT governance framework.
Mr. Sokbou holds a master’s degree in informa�on technology from
the Na�onal University of Management and acquires mul�ple online
technology cer�ﬁca�ons.

Mr. Mourng Sokbou

Director of Human Capital and Administra�on Department
Mr. But Vanny worked for the General Department of Financial
Industry of the Ministry of Economy and Finance of Cambodia for
over 10 years in the areas of ﬁnancial sector development. He also
has over 8 years of experience in the private sector.
He was a member of the ASEAN+3 Taskforce by regularly a�ending
the ASEAN+3 Taskforce Mee�ngs. He received a Master of Business
Administra�on from the Phnom Penh Interna�onal University.

Mr. But Vanny
Senior Manager of Legal and Company Secretariat Department
Ms. Phomra has over 10-year experience as a legal adviser, with
exper�se in banking and ﬁnance, insurance, corporate laws and
regula�ons, and in-depth prac�cal knowledge of contract laws.
Before joining CGCC, she was Head of Banking & Finance; has worked
for local and interna�onal law ﬁrms, advising clients on large project
ﬁnancing transac�ons, M&As, and ﬁnancial ins�tu�on licensing. She
holds a master’s degree in law from the University of Lyon 3, France.

Mrs. Saray Phomra
CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CGCC DEPARTMENTS’
ACHIEVEMENTS
CGCC’s Team
The staﬀ of CGCC from the respec�ve 7 departments such as Strategy and Business Development, Informa�on Technology
Services, Risk Management and Compliance, Legal and Company Secretariat, Centralized Opera�ons, Finance and Business

Analy�cs, and Human Capital and Administra�on. They aspire to build up CGCC to support the development of Micro,
Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) and ﬁnancial inclusion.

Strategy and Business
Development Department
We drive CGCC’s business growth and ensure that the
company’s objec�ves are met.

Stakeholders Rela�on
In 2021, CGCC partnered up with 20 PFIs consis�ng of 15 banks, 3 microﬁnance deposit- taking ins�tu�ons, and 2 microﬁnance
ins�tu�ons. CGCC also ac�vely engaged with business communi�es including CWEA, YEAC, CCC, FASMEC, GMAC, and BNI to
promote CGCC’s guarantee schemes – BRGS and CFGS.

Outreach Pla�orm
CGCC issued the first Newsletter covering CGCC’s progress and activities from October to December 2021.
CGCC launched its website in May 2021 as a platform to share relevant information about CGCC and CGCC’s
guarantee schemes. By the end of 2021, there were more than 2,000 visitors to the website.
CGCC launched its Facebook page, LinkedIn page, and Telegram channel to provide convenient, fast, and eﬀec�ve ways
of communica�ng with stakeholders. As of December 2021, there were more than 2000 likes on CGCC’s Facebook,
over 300 followers on the LinkedIn, and more than 150 subscribers to the Telegram channel.

Product Development
Two guarantee schemes were launched in 2021 to support businesses - BRGS and CFGS.

Development Partner Rela�on
ADB is a leading development partner in providing technical assistance to establish CGCC from the very early
stage. With ADB’s support, CGCC’s legal and opera�onal framework was set up.
CGCC is one of the beneficiaries of the UN Program on “Unlocking Cambodian Women’s Potential Through Fiscal
Space Crea�on”, funded by the UN COVID-19 Response and Recovery Mul�-Partner Trust Fund and implemented by
UN agencies including UNCDF, UNDP, the Interna�onal Organiza�on for Migra�on (IOM) and the Interna�onal Fund
for Agricultural Development (IFAD).
CGCC and UNCDF signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) on 8 April 2021. The purpose of the MOU is to
provide a framework for the non-exclusive coopera�on between the two. Based on the MOU, CGCC and UNCDF also
went on to sign a Le�er of Agreement for the implementa�on of Cambodia Covid-19 response, unlocking Cambodian
women’s potential through ﬁscal space crea�on on 19 April under which UNCDF provided a grant of 100,000 USD for
CGCC’s organiza�onal development setup and launch of Business Recovery Guarantee Scheme. UNCDF also provided
an additional grant of 50,000 USD for the capacity development of CGCC.
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Information Technology (IT)
Services Department
We design and develop CGCC’s informa�on technology.

Administra�ve Systems
IT enables efficient administrative functions by offering systems that support the achievement of CGCC objectives.
Services include guarantee applica�on form management, billing and ﬁnance system as well as facilita�ng integra�on
between these systems.

Client Support
IT provides clients with a digital workplace that allows them to function at their peak efficiency. Services include
desktop and software management, printer, SharePoint solution, and a variety of other services.

Communica�on Services
IT encourages information sharing through team communication and collaboration, allowing CGCC employees to
work eﬃciently together. We leverage the cloud- based Microso� Oﬃce 365 environment, which greatly streamlines and
secures communication inside CGCC. Services include online collaboration, video conferencing, messaging, email,
SharePoint, and much more.

Analy�cs and Repor�ng
IT assists decision-makers by providing a variety of repor�ng. Services include report development, interac�ve dashboard
design, data visualization, and ad hoc reports among the services offered.

Consul�ng Services
IT empowers CGCC employees to maximize the use of technology to solve challenging company and business needs.
Services include new solu�on research and study, project management, process op�miza�on, new technology solution
evaluation, and more.

Cybersecurity Services
IT reduces the risk of cybersecurity threats and vulnerabili�es by safeguarding CGCC’s technology assets. Services include
secure compu�ng such as data protec�on and encryp�on, an�-malware, vulnerability assessment, and patching.

IT Infrastructure
CGCC builds sustainable IT infrastructure which is the foundation for credit guarantee management system and
other CGCC business systems to address current and future challenges. In 2021, CGCC made a significant step to the
fully virtualized environment using solutions from the best on the market VM Ware brand.
CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Risk Management
and Compliance Department
We make sure that CGCC’s risk exposure is
well monitored and managed.

Risk Management Framework: The Risk Management Framework was set up to provide a common methodology and mechanism
for risk management and to ensure that all key risks are being addressed and managed appropriately.
Risk Appe�te Framework: The Risk Appe�te Framework was set up to monitor risk proﬁle against risk appe�te including
the escala�on procedures or ac�on plans.
Board Risk Management Commi�ee: Board Risk Management Commi�ee was set up to assist the Board of Directors
to deliberate the risk management prac�ces, to ensure the eﬀec�veness of iden�fying, measuring, monitoring, and
controlling risks, as well as complying with the applicable laws, regula�ons, and guidelines for good corporate governance.

Legal and Company
Secretariat Department
We ensure that CGCC complies with
applicable laws and regula�ons.

19
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Legal: The legal team is responsible for providing legal consulta�on or legal advice to all departments, employees, and
management in CGCC to ensure compliance with the applicable laws and regula�ons and that the interests of the
organiza�on are legally protected. In addi�on, the legal team reviews agreements entered into between CGCC, PFIs,
and/or stakeholders, commercial contracts with suppliers, and documents from relevant departments of the organiza�on,
to ensure that all those documents are in line with the applicable laws and regula�ons prior to submi�ng to the board
of directors for approval. Moreover, the legal team dra�s agreements, memorandum of understanding, le�ers, and
necessary documents for the organiza�on for internal use and engaging with third par�es and conducts legal analysis
and research on legal ma�ers.
Company Secretary: To be in line with the Ar�cles of Incorpora�on dated 2 November 2020 and for a shake of good
corporate governance, a company secretary is recruited to support the Board of Directors (Board) and management
of the organiza�on for the implementa�on of their du�es. Since the establishment of CGCC, the company secretary
has organized 7 board mee�ngs and 3 EXCO mee�ngs.
Procurement: CGCC established a procurement commi�ee (PC) and a procurement unit (PU) to comply with applicable
laws and regula�ons of a state-owned enterprise. The establishment of these PC and PU is to ensure that the
procurement process is transparent, accountable, and eﬃcient. In 2021, PU run bidding for 29 projects to source
suppliers with a total amount of USD139,188.96.

Centralized Operations
Department
We support guarantee applica�ons and
the issuance of le�ers of guarantee to our PFIs.

Guarantee opera�onal manual including PFI applica�on guidelines, guarantee applica�on form guideline, loan monitoring
process guideline, and claim process guideline was designed to roll out CGCC’s guarantee schemes.
The CGCC has taken eﬀorts to assist PFIs in submi�ng guarantee applications to CGCC to ensure efficient and
accurate application to CGCC.
CGCC has commi�ed to a turnaround �me (TAT) of less than 5 of working days to issue a Le�er of Guarantee (LG) a�er
receiving a sa�sfying guarantee applica�on from PFIs. CGCC has ac�vely supported the PFIs on guarantee applica�ons
to shorten the TAT and increase the number of guarantee applica�ons. The average CGCC’s TAT in 2021 is 3.32 days.
Monitor the monthly report on PFI Outstanding Principal Balance, and train new and exis�ng PFIs on how to ﬁll in the
GAF and to submit loan support documents to CGCC.
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Finance and Business
Analytics Department
We manage CGCC’s ﬁnancial repor�ng.

Establishment of Finance Policies and Procedures
The Finance Policies and Procedures provide speciﬁc guidance for management and personnel of CGCC on all areas of day-to-day
ﬁnancial management. The Board of Directors of CGCC approved the Finance Policies and Procedures in the 5th board mee�ng.

Establishment of Authority Manual
The purpose of this Authority Manual (“AM”) is to ensure the efficient operation of CGCC by establishing levels of
authority and/or designating officers who may sign written instruments or take other actions in the name of and on
behalf of CGCC. The Board of Directors approved CGCC’s Authority Manual in the 6th board meeting.

Se�ng up of Accoun�ng System
The accounting system, an ERP web-based system, was set up. The key considerations of choosing this system are:
Flexibility of access from anywhere with CGCC standard IT security, unlimited users, multiple currencies, ability to
integrate with other systems (such as Core Credit Guarantee Management System), good value for money for the
costs of system (including setting up and maintenances cost).

Annual Business Plan and Budget
CGCC prepared the 2022 annual business plan and budget and got approval from the Board of Directors and Ministry of Economy and
Finance within the �meline set in the Finance Policies and Procedures and relevant regula�ons related to State-owned Enterprise.

Audited Financial Statements
The ﬁnancial statements of CGCC have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Cambodian Interna�onal
Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs”) as required by Law on Accounting and Auditing and relevant regulations.
The auditor of Baker Tilly Cambodia express audit opinion that the accompany give a true and fair view of the
financial posi�on of the Company as of 31 December 2021, and of its ﬁnancial performance and its cash ﬂows for the
ﬁnancial period from 3 November 2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31 December 2021 in accordance with the Cambodian
Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (“CIFRSs”).

Financial Indicators
Cost-to-Income Ratio (CIR) in 2021 is managed to be 19% which is in line with the target CIR to be below 35%. Profit
margin is at 78% which is 219% higher than budget.
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Human Capital and
Administration Department
We take care of CGCC’s staﬀ welfare and development.

Human Resource (HR) Policy
HR policy was established as a comprehensive policy on handling employee matters including provisions on the
appointment, promotion, and dismissal, salary scheme, disciplinary action, right and obligation of Employees, leave
entitlement, compensation, health and safety measures, and other benefits to employees in order to ensure the
eﬀec�veness of management, good governance, accountability, and transparency in accordance with the applicable laws
and regula�ons.

Internal Regula�on
Internal Regula�on was established to set out the rules governing the conduct of the employees to comply with the
applicable law and regula�ons.

Guidelines on Employees Compensa�on, Beneﬁts, and En�tlements
Guidelines on Employees Compensation, Benefits, and Entitlements were prepared to provide CGCC’s employees
with a framework on the remuneration and benefits benchmark against the industry standards.
HR management targets such as standard HR management system and development of knowledge, competency, skills,
and a�tudes were developed to ensure that staﬀ performs their du�es to achieve the targets set by the CGCC.
CGCC’s organiza�on structure for 2021 comprises 7 departments to manage the business opera�ons of the company
and the budgeted headcount for 2021 was 25 staﬀ. Over the last 12 months un�l December 2021, CGCC has recruited a
total of 24 staﬀs.
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CGCC GUARANTEE
SCHEMES

Business Recovery Guarantee Scheme ( BRGS )

BRGS aims to support businesses including Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and Large Firms to
enhance their access to formal loans for both working capital and investment or business expansion. BRGS is in line
with the policies of the Royal Government of Cambodia to support the survival and economic recovery during the
COVID-19 pandemic.

BRGS Features:
Scheme Size

200 million USD

Scheme Period

March 2021 to December 2022

Eligible Loans

• All types of loan facili�es (term loan, overdra�, trade facility, etc.)
• New loans ONLY, not for reﬁnancing
• Both secured and unsecured loans
• Excludes loans in the Nega�ve List
Agriculture Sector

80% of Outstanding Guaranteed Loan

Industry Sector

80% of Outstanding Guaranteed Loan

Service Sector & Non-Priority Sector

70% of Outstanding Guaranteed Loan

Guarantee Fee
per annum

Priority Sector

1% of Outstanding Guaranteed Amount

Non-Priority Sector

1.5% of Outstanding Guaranteed Amount

GuaranteeTenure

Maximum of 7 years

Guarantee
Coverage

Loan Purposes
Guarantee
Coverage

CGCC’s Single
Borrower
Guarantee Limit

Working capital
Investment/ Business Expansion

Non-Priority Sector

Priority Sector
SME

Large Firm

SME

Large Firm

300,000 USD
500,000 USD

500,000 USD
700,000 USD

200,000 USD
300,000 USD

300,000 USD
500,000 USD

500,000 USD for SMEs
1,000,000 USD for Large Firm

CGCC reserves the right to change the features of BRGS and an adequate no�ce period will be given.
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Process Flow of BRGS

Funding & Monitoring

Repor�ng

3

2
Issuing Le�er
of Guarantee

A�er Loan Approval,
Submi�ng Guarantee
Applica�on form to apply
for CGCC’s Guarantee

Par�cipated Financial Ins�tu�ons (PFIs)

4

1
Disbursing
Guaranteed Loan

Applying for
Loan

BORROWERS
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Co-Financing Guarantee Scheme (CFGS)

The Co-Financing Guarantee Scheme (CFGS) is the credit guarantee scheme oﬀered by the CGCC to Par�cipa�ng
Financial Ins�tu�ons (PFIs) on the loans lent out under the SME Co-Financing Scheme II of SME Bank of Cambodia.
CFGS aims to support development of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) to enhance their access to formal
loans for both working capital and investment or business expansion.

CFGS Features:

Scheme Size

50 million USD

Scheme Period

From 22 September 2021 un�l the SME Co-Financing Scheme II is fully u�lized

Eligible Loans

• Term Loan
• New loans ONLY, not for reﬁnancing
• Both secured and unsecured loans
• Excludes loans in the Nega�ve List

Guarantee
Coverage

Priority Sectors

80% of Outstanding Guaranteed Loan

Non-Priority Sector

70% of Outstanding Guaranteed Loan

* Priority and non-priority sectors are determined by SME Bank of Cambodia under SCFS II

Guarantee Fee
per annum

Priority Sector

1% of Outstanding Guaranteed Amount

Non-Priority Sector

1.5% of Outstanding Guaranteed Amount

GuaranteeTenure

Maximum of 7 years

Guaranteed Loan
Interest Rate

PFI’s Prescribed Interest Rate under SME Co-Financing Scheme Phase II of SME Bank of
Cambodia

Maximum Loan
Amount (USD)

Loan Purposes

CGCC’s Single
Borrower
Guarantee Limit

Working Capital
300,000 USD

Capital Expenditure
500,000 USD

500,000 USD for SMEs

CGCC reserves the right to change the features of CFGS and an adequate no�ce period will be given.
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Process Flow of CFGS

SME

1

4

Loan Request

Guaranteed Co-ﬁnancing
Loan Disbursement

Par�cipated Financial Ins�tu�ons (PFIs)

3a

2a
Co-ﬁnancing Loan
Approval and
disbursement

A�er Loan approval,PFI
Submit Co-ﬁnancing Loan
applica�on to SME Bank

2

3

A�er Loan approval,PFI
Submit Guarantee
Applica�on to CGCC

Guarantee Issuance
( within 3-5 days )
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EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES

PARTNERSHIP WITH PARTICIPATING
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
CGCC joint hands with 20 ﬁnancial Ins�tu�ons in Cambodia to provide guaranteed loans to SMEs
CGCC has collaborated with 20 banks and micro-ﬁnance ins�tu�ons (MFIs) in 2021, which are the par�cipa�ng ﬁnancial
ins�tu�ons (PFIs). As a government-backed ins�tu�on with adequate capital in its account, CGCC is set to provide a wide
range of guarantees on loans disbursed to Cambodian-owned businesses across the country.
The increased number of PFIs will provide borrowers with a more diverse choice of ﬁnancial ins�tu�ons across the
country to seek ﬁnancing under the CGCC's guarantee schemes. CGCC supports PFIs on loan disbursement to borrowers who
are deemed able to repay them but lack collateral, by providing guarantees of 70% or 80% of the loan principal.

Signing Ceremony with
Canadia Bank

Signing Ceremony with
Cambodia Post Bank PLC.

Signing Ceremony with
Prince Bank

Signing Ceremony with

PFIs Batch 2 (Amret MFI, Bred Bank,
Camma MFI, FTB, J Trust, LOLC,
RHB, Sathapana)

Signing Ceremony with
Chamroeun MFI

Signing Ceremony with
ABA Bank

Signing Ceremony with
Wing Bank

Signing Ceremony with
Maybank

CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021

30

OUTREACH
EVENTS
$200 million Business Recovery Guarantee
Scheme launched by Credit Guarantee
Corporation of Cambodia to Support
Businesses.
The Ministry of Economy and Finance announced the
launch of the Business Recovery Guarantee Scheme
(BRGS) by Credit Guarantee Corpora�on of Cambodia
(CGCC) on 29 March 2021. The BRGS aims to support
businesses including micro, small and medium enterprises,
and large ﬁrms to enhance their access to formal loans
from Par�cipa�ng Financial Ins�tu�ons (PFIs) for
working capital, investment, and business expansion.
This ini�ative is in line with the policies of the Royal
Government of Cambodia to support the survival and
economic recovery during the COVID-19 pandemic.

https://bit.ly/3u2RWnt

CGCC launches $50 million Co- Financing
Guarantee Scheme to support SMEs
CGCC launched the Co-Financing Guarantee Scheme
(CFGS), speciﬁcally designed for the co-ﬁnancing loans
disbursed under the SMEs Co-Financing Scheme
Phase II (SCFS II) of the SME Bank of Cambodia. CFGS
and SCFS II are the joint eﬀorts of the two state-owned
enterprises to improve access to ﬁnance for SMEs.
While SCFS II aims to lower SMEs’ cost of borrowing,
CFGS is a guarantee scheme that will act as collateral /
security for 70%-80% of the loan amount; thus, reducing
the physical collateral required from the borrowers.

CGCC shares Key Reﬂection of Covid-19
response and future perspective to accelerate
the economic recovery

https://bit.ly/3j5tMCx

CGCC’s CEO, Mr. Wong Keet Loong, on 26 November
2021, a�ended the Annual Microﬁnance Conference
2021 via online, under the topic “Microﬁnance Sector
Resilience and Economic Recovery amid the COVID-19
Pandemic: Challenges and Opportuni�es” and par�cipated
as a panelist in a panel discussion on “Key Reﬂec�on of
COVID-19 response and future perspective to accelerate
the economic recovery”.
This event was organized by Cambodia Microﬁnance
Associa�on (CMA) with par�cipa�on from related
stakeholders such as government institutions, development
agencies, especially the ﬁnancial ins�tu�ons including
banks and Microﬁnance ins�tu�ons.
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https://bit.ly/3NNXHgI

OUTREACH
EVENTS

CGCC & Raising Awareness on How to Apply
for Loan with Credit Guarantee for Businesses
On 06 December 2021, Mr. No Lida, Deputy CEO of
CGCC, was a panelist in a virtual workshop on “Access
to Finance for SMEs and Women Entrepreneurs Challenges
and Solu�ons” organized by the Associa�on of Banks in
Cambodia (ABC), the Cambodia Microﬁnance Association
(CMA), and PACT Cambodia. The workshop aimed to
engage and build a bridge between stakeholders (banking
and ﬁnancial ins�tutions, SMEs, women entrepreneurs,
government, and development partners) to address the
challenges of SMEs and women entrepreneurs in
access to ﬁnance and to discuss the solu�ons for this
issue.

https://bit.ly/3DQOM9P

Credit Guarantee – Beneﬁts & Opportunities to
Support Small and Medium Enterprises (SME)
Development
Credit Guarantee Corpora�on of Cambodia (CGCC)
organized its ﬁrst virtual seminar on “Credit Guarantee –
Beneﬁts & Opportuni�es to Support Small and
Medium Enterprises (SME) Development” on 16
December 2021, with support from the Ministry of
Economy and Finance, Asian Development Bank (ADB),
and the United Na�ons Capital Development Fund
(UNCDF).
The seminar brought together relevant stakeholders
including the Government, Development Partners,
Financial Ins�tu�ons, and business representa�ves to
discuss the beneﬁts and opportuni�es of using credit
guarantees to support business survival and expansion.

https://bit.ly/3GP2lXu
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ENGAGEMENT WITH
STAKEHOLDERS
Discussion with The Association of
Banks in Cambodia and Cambodian Microﬁnance
Association on Co-Financing Guarantee Scheme
On August 11, 2021, CGCC together with the Associa�on
of Banks in Cambodia (ABC) and the Cambodian Microfinance Associa�on (CMA) held a joint discussion on the
Co-ﬁnancing Guarantee Scheme. The discussion was
a�ended by more than 99 stakeholders, members of the
ABC and CMA, and stakeholders in the ﬁnancial sector.
https://bit.ly/3u2RWnt

CGCC organized Board of Director Meeting 7
times in 2021
In 2021, Board of Directors Mee�ng of CGCC was
organized physically and virtually, in the presence of
H.E. Ros Seilava, Secretary of State of the Ministry of
Economy and Finance, and the chairman of the CGCC’s
Board of Directors, along with the presence of other 6
Board of Directors members including H.E. Mey Vann,
Representa�ve of Ministry of Economy and Finance
(MEF), H.E. Yea Bunna, Representa�ve of Ministry of
Industry, Science, Technology and Innova�on (MISTI),
Mr. Kith Sovannarith, Representa�ve of Na�onal Bank
of Cambodia (NBC), Mr. Wong Keet Loong, Chief Execu�ve
Oﬃcer of CGCC, Mr. Sok Voeun, Representa�ve of
private sector, and Mr. No Lida, Deputy Chief Execu�ve
Oﬃcer of CGCC.
CGCC’s Board of Directors Mee�ng is regularly
organized to review, evaluate, and seek recommenda�ons
and decisions on CGCC’s ac�vi�es and progress,
especially the credit guarantee schemes of CGCC, in
order to ensure transparency and eﬃciency.
https://bit.ly/3j5tMCx
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CGCC Reached out to Business Associa�ons
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors hereby submit their report together with the audited ﬁnancial statements
of the Company for the ﬁnancial period from 3 November 2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal ac�vity of the Company is the provision of credit guarantee services.

RESULTS

Proﬁt for the ﬁnancial period

USD

KHR'000

7,661,172

31,165,648

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in respect of the ﬁnancial
period from 3 November 2020 (date incorpora�on) to 31 December 2021.

RESERVES AND
PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the ﬁnancial period
other than those disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL
DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Company were prepared, the directors took
reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off
of bad debts and the making of allowance for doub�ul debts and had sa�sﬁed themselves
that there were no known bad debts and that adequate allowance had been made for
doubtful debts.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which
would render it necessary to write off any bed debts or the amount of allowance for
doub�ul debts in the ﬁnancial statements of the Company inadequate to any substan�al
extent.

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the ﬁnancial statements of the Company were prepared, the directors took reasonable
steps to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary
course of business including their values as shown in the accoun�ng records of the Company
had been wri�en down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render the values a�ributed to the current assets in the ﬁnancial statements of the Company
misleading.

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen
which render adherence to the exis�ng methods of valua�on of assets or liabili�es of the
Company misleading or inappropriate.
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CONTINGENT AND
OTHER LIABILITIES

At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(1) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the ﬁnancial
period which secures the liabili�es of any other person; and
(2) any con�ngent liabili�es in respect of the Company which has arisen since the end of
the ﬁnancial period.
In the opinion of the Directors, no con�ngent liabili�es or other liabili�es of the Company
have become enforceable, or are likely to become enforceable within the period of
twelve months a�er the end of the ﬁnancial period which will or may aﬀect the ability of
the Company to meet its obliga�ons as and when they fall due.

CHANGE OF
CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or the ﬁnancial statements of the Company which would render any
amount stated in the ﬁnancial statements misleading.

ITEMS OF MATERIAL
AND UNUSUAL NATURE

In the opinion of the Directors,
(1) the results of the opera�ons of the Company for the ﬁnancial period were not
substan�ally aﬀected by any item, transac�on or event of a material and unusual
nature; and
(2) no item, transac�on or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the
interval between the end of the ﬁnancial period and the date of this report which is
likely to aﬀect substan�ally the results of the opera�ons of the Company for the
ﬁnancial period in which this report is made.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

During the ﬁnancial period, no new issue of shares or debentures were made by the Company.

DIRECTORS

The directors in oﬃce during the ﬁnancial period from 3 November 2020 (date of incorpora�on)
to 31 December 2021 and during the period from the end of the ﬁnancial period to the
date of this report are:
H.E. ROS SEILAVA
H.E. MEY VANN
H.E. YEA BUNNA
Mr. KITH SOVANNARITH
Mr. WONG KEET LOONG
Mr. SOK VOEUN
Mr. NO LIDA

SIGNIFICANT EVENT
SUBSEQUENT TO THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL
PERIOD

39

(Appointed on 15 March 2021)

Details of signiﬁcant event subsequent to the end of the ﬁnancial period are disclosed in
Note 27.
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AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs. Baker Tilly (Cambodia) Co., Ltd., have expressed their willingness
to con�nue in oﬃce.

DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for ascertaining that the ﬁnancial
statements of the Company give a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial posi�on of the
Company as at 31 December 2021, and its ﬁnancial performance and its cash ﬂows for
the ﬁnancial period from 3 November 2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31 December 2021
then ended. In preparing these ﬁnancial statements, the directors of the Company are
required to:
(1) adopt appropriate accoun�ng policies in accordance with Cambodian Interna�onal
Financial Repor�ng Standards (“CIFRSs”), which are supported by reasonable and
prudent judgement and es�mates, and then apply them consistently;
(2) comply with the disclosure requirements of CIFRSs or, if there have been any departures
from such standards, in the interest of fair presenta�on, ensure that this has been
appropriately disclosed, explained and quan�ﬁed in the ﬁnancial statements;
(3) maintain adequate accoun�ng records that enable the Company to prepare its
ﬁnancial statements under CIFRSs and an eﬀec�ve system of internal controls;
(4) prepare the ﬁnancial statements on a going-concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to assume that the Company will con�nue opera�ons in the reasonable future; and
(5) eﬀec�vely control and direct the Company and be involved in all material decisions
aﬀec�ng its opera�ons and performance, and ascertain that such ma�ers have been
properly reﬂected in the ﬁnancial statements.
The directors conﬁrm that the Company has complied with the above requirements in
preparing its ﬁnancial statements.

APPROVAL OF
THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the accompanying ﬁnancial statements are in
accordance with Cambodian Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards so as to give a true
and fair view of the ﬁnancial posi�on of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and of its
ﬁnancial performance and cash ﬂows for the ﬁnancial period from 3 November 2020 (date of
incorpora�on) to 31 December 2021.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

ASSETS

Note

USD

KHR’000

3,731,892
9,098,611
193,912,610
60,000
329,593

15,203,728
37,067,741
789,999,973
244,440
1,342,762

207,132,706

843,858,644

328,456
37,263
6,583
30,612

1,338,130
151,809
26,819
124,713

402,914

1,641,471

200,000,000
(931,380)
7,661,172

810,000,000
1,051,525
31,165,648

TOTAL EQUITY

206,729,792

842,217,173

TOTAL LIABILTIES AND EQUITY

207,132,706

843,858,644

Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Term deposits
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

5
6
7
8

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
9
10

Other payables
Expected credit losses for guarantee schemes
Current tax liabilities
Provision for seniority indemnity

11

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
12
13

Share capital
Exchange diﬀerences
Retained earnings

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM

Share capital
USD

KHR’000

200,000,000

810,000,000

Proﬁt for the period

_

_

Other comprehensive income
for the ﬁnancial period

_

_

Total comprehensive income

_

_

200,000,000

810,000,000

At 3 November 2020
(date of incorporation)

At 31 December 2021
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Retained earnings
USD
_
7,661,172

_

KHR’000
_
31,165,648

_

7,661,172

31,165,648

7,661,172

31,165,648

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM

Note
14
15
16

Revenue
Investment income
Other income
Total income
Personnel costs (inclusive of key management)
Marketing expenses
Administrative and operating expenses
Expected credit losses for guarantee schemes

17

Total operating expenses

3 NOVEMBER 2020 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 DECEMBER 2021

USD

KHR’000

61,510
9,684,481
49,919

250,223
39,396,469
203,070

9,795,910

39,849,762

(860,501)
(38,977)
(1,189,388)
(37,261)

(3,500,518)
(158,558)
(4,838,430)
(151,578)

(2,126,127)

(8,649,084)

Proﬁt before tax

18

7,669,783

31,200,678

Income tax expense

19

(8,611)

(35,030)

7,661,172

31,165,648

Items that will not be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
Exchange diﬀerences

(931,380)

1,051,525

Total comprehensive income for the period

6,729,792

32,217,173

Proﬁt for the period

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

3 NOVEMBER 2020 (DATE OF INCORPORATION) TO 31 DECEMBER 2021

Exchange diﬀerences
USD

KHR’000

_

_

_

_

Total equity
USD

KHR’000

200,000,000

810,000,000

7,661,172

31,165,648

(931,380)

1,051,525

(931,380)

1,051,525

(931,380)

1,051,525

6,729,792

32,217,173

(931,380)

1,051,525

206,729,792

842,217,173
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM

Operating activities

3 NOVEMBER 2020 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 DECEMBER 2021

USD

KHR’000

7,669,783

31,200,678

1,902
37,261
239,591
(9,083,878)

7,737
151,578
974,656
(36,953,216)

(1,135,341)

(4,618,567)

(45,485)
349,412
30,612

(185,033)
1,421,408
124,530

(800,802)

(3,257,662)

(2,028)

(8,250)

(802,830)

(3,265,912)

(331,495)
(60,000)
(194,140,192)

(1,348,522)
(244,080)
(789,762,301)

Net cash used in investing activities

(194,531,687)

(791,354,903)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent

(195,334,517)

(794,620,815)

200,000,000

810,000,000

(933,591)

(175,457)

3,731,892

15,203,728

Proﬁt before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Expected credit losses from guarantee schemes
Net unrealised foreign exchange loss
Interest income

Operating loss before changes in workings capital
Other receivables
Other payables
Provision for seniority indemnity

Net cash generated used in operations
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash ﬂows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plants and equipment
Purchase of intangible asset
Term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents at
3 November 2020 (date of incorporation)
Exchange diﬀerences

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2021

43

CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Credit Guarantee Corpora�on of Cambodia Plc. “CGCC” (“the Company”) is a state-owned enterprise established by a
Sub-Decree No. 140 ANKR.BK dated 1 September 2020. The Company operated under the technical and ﬁnancial
guidance of the Ministry of Economy and Finance (“MEF”). The Company was incorporated on 3 November 2020 and
domiciled in the Kingdom of Cambodia.
The registered oﬃce is located at Ministry of Economy and Finance, Street 92, Sangkat Wat Phnom, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom
Penh, Cambodia and opera�ng oﬃce of the Company is located at The General Department of Customs and Exercise of
Cambodia Building, 25th Floor, Preash Norodom Boulevard, Sangkat Phsar Thmei III, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh, Cambodia.
The company commenced its business opera�on on 1 January 2021.
The principal ac�vity of the company is the provision of credit guarantee services.
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
( a ) Basis of preparation of the ﬁnancial statements
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Cambodian Interna�onal Financial
Repor�ng Standards (“CIFRSs”). The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conven�on except
as disclosed in the accoun�ng policies below.
This is the Company’s ﬁrst ﬁnancial statements prepared in accordance with CIFRSs and CIFRS 1 First-�me Adop�on of
Cambodian Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards has been applied.
The prepara�on of ﬁnancial statements in conformity with CIFRSs requires management to make judgements, es�mates
and assump�ons that aﬀect the applica�on of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses.
The es�mates and associated assump�ons are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabili�es that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may diﬀer from these es�mates.
The es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are
recognised in the period in which the es�mate is revised if the revision aﬀects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision aﬀects both current and future periods.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assump�ons and es�mates that are
signiﬁcant to the Company’s ﬁnancial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
( b ) Functional and presentation currency
The na�onal currency of Cambodia is the Khmer Riel (“KHR”). However, as the Company transacts its business and
maintains its accoun�ng records primarily in United States Dollar (“USD”), the Directors has determined the USD to be the
company’s currency for measurement and presenta�on purposes as it reﬂects the economic substance of the underlying
events and circumstances of the Company.
The transla�ons of USD amounts into KHR presented in the ﬁnancial statements are included solely to comply with the
Law on Accoun�ng and Audi�ng and have been using the prescribed oﬃcial annual closing and average exchange rate of
USD1 to KHR4,074 and USD1 to KHR4,068 respec�vely as announced by the Na�onal Bank of Cambodia.
These convenient transla�ons should not be construed as representa�ons that the USD amounts represent, or have been
or could be, converted into KHR at that or any other rate.
( c ) Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated deprecia�on and any impairment in value. The cost of property, plant and equipment ini�ally recognised
includes its purchase price and any cost that is directly a�ributable to bringing the asset to the loca�on and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the
Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised.
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Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of the cost of property, plant and equipment if the
obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.
On disposal of a property, plant and equipment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and its carrying
amount is taken to profit or loss.
Assets under construction included in property, plant and equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not
available for use.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of all other property, plant and equipment
over their expected useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Annual deprecia�on rate
Furniture and ﬁxture
Oﬃce equipment
Computer and equipment

20%
20%
20%

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment are reviewed,
and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting period. The effects of any revision are recognised in profit or loss
when the changes arise.
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.
( d ) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Company assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
As a lessee
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices.
The company recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end
of the lease term or the cost of the right- of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In
that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined
on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is ini�ally measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of the following:
- ﬁxed payments, including in-substance ﬁxed payments;
- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;
- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and the exercise price under a purchase op�on that
the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an op�onal renewal period if the company is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension op�on, and penal�es for early termina�on of a lease unless the company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.
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The lease liability is measured at amor�sed cost using the eﬀec�ve interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s es�mate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company change its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termina�on op�on or if there is a revised in-substance ﬁxed lease payment.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in proﬁt or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The Company present right-of-use assets and lease liabili�es separately in the statement of ﬁnancial posi�on.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. The Company recognise the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
( e ) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the es�mated useful life is ﬁnite) and impairment losses. Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:
Annual deprecia�on rate
20%
Software
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the
useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.
( f ) Impairment of non-ﬁnancial assets
At each reporting period, the Company assesses the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A previously recognised impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill
is only reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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( g ) Financial assets
Classiﬁcation
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through proﬁt or loss or through comprehensive income), and
- those to be measured at amortised cost.
Recognition of ﬁnancial assets
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the profit or loss.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest (“SPPI”).
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when the
business model for managing those assets changes.
There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies the debt instruments:
(1) Amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payment of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in investment income using the eﬀec�ve interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecogni�on is
recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income and presented in investment income together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement
of comprehensive income.
(2) Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent SPPI, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of comprehensive income and recognised
in investment income. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in investment income and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.
(3) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. The Company may also
irrevocably designate financial assets at FVTPL if doing so significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created
by assets and liabilities being measured on different bases. Fair value changes are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income and presented net within investment income in the period which it arises.
Equity instruments
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to the statement of comprehensive income following the derecogni�on of the investments.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as other
income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in investment income in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Impairment of debt instruments and ﬁnancial guarantee contracts
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit loss (“ECL”) associated with its debt instruments
carried at amor�sed cost and FVOCI and ﬁnancial guarantee contracts issued. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
The Company has two types of financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:
- Other receivable
- Financial guarantee contracts
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of CIFRS 9, the iden�ﬁed impairment
loss was immaterial.
ECL represents a probability-weighted estimate of the differences between presents value of cash flows according
to contract and present value of cash flows the Company expects to receive, over the remaining life of financial
instrument.
For financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments to reimburse the holder
of the guarantee debt instrument less any amount that the Company expect to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.
The measurement of ECL reflects:
- reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
(1) General 3-stage approach for the other receivables and financial guarantee contract issued
At each reporting date, the Company measures ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal to 12 month ECL if
credit risk on a financial instrument or a group of financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition. For all financial instruments, a loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL is required.
(2) Simplified approach for other receivables
The Company applies the CIFRS 9 simpliﬁed approach to measure ECL which uses a life�me ECL for all other receivables.
Signiﬁcant increase in credit risk (“SICR”)
The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as the
reporting date with the risk of default as the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.
The following indicators are incorporated:
- Default risk: The Company shall compare the risk of a default occurring on the ﬁnancial instrument as at the repor�ng
date with the risk of a default as at the date of ini�al recogni�on.
- Forward looking information: When more forward looking than past due informa�on is available, it must be used
assess SICR. Because credit risk typically increases significantly before a ﬁnancial instrument becomes past due or
other lagging customer-specific factors (for example, a modification or restructuring) are observed.
- Past due information: When information that is more forward looking than past due status is not available, the
company may use past due information to determine SICR.
- Collec�ve assessment: Some factors or indicators may not be iden�ﬁable on an individual ﬁnancial instrument level.
In such a case, the factors or indicators should be assessed for appropriate por�olio of ﬁnancial instruments to
determine SICR.
- Low credit risk at repor�ng date: Financial instrument with low risk at repor�ng date could be considered as no SCIR.
- Non funded product consideration: For financing commitments, using changes in the risk of a default occurring
on the financing to which a financing commitment relates. For financial guarantee contracts, an entity considers
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract.
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- Derecogni�on of SICR: Financial instruments that move from stage 2 back to stage 1 need to have a history of �mely
payment performance against the modiﬁed contractual terms.
Macroeconomics information (such as unemployment rates) is incorporated as part of the internal rating model.
Regardless of the analysis above, a signiﬁcant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than 90 days past
due in making a contractual payment.
Deﬁnition of default and credit-impaired ﬁnancial assets
The Company deﬁnes a ﬁnancial instrument as default, which fully aligned with the deﬁni�on of credit-impaired, when it
meets one or more of the following criteria:
Quantitative criteria:
The Company defines a financial instrument as default, when the counterparty fails to make contractual payment
within 90 days of when they fall due.
Qualitative criteria:
The debtor meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the debtor is in significant financial difficulty. The
Company considers the following instances:
- the debtor is in breach of the financial covenants
- concessions have been made by the lender relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty
- it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
- the debtor is insolvent
Financial instruments that are credit-impaired are assessed on individual basis.
Write-oﬀ policy
The gross carrying amount of a ﬁnancial asset is wri�en oﬀ (either par�ally or in full) to the extent that there is no realis�c
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate suﬃcient cash ﬂows to repay the amounts subject to the write-oﬀ.
Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously wri�en oﬀ are recognised as a reversal of impairment in proﬁt or
loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
Modiﬁcation of loans and ﬁnancing
The Company writes off financial asset or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans and financing to
the customers. When this happens, the Company assesses whether or not the new terms are substan�ally diﬀerent to
the original terms. The Company does this by considering among others, the following factors:
- if the borrower is in ﬁnancial diﬃculty, whether the modiﬁca�on merely reduces the contractual cash ﬂows to amount
the borrower is expected to be able pay
- whether any substan�al new terms are introduced, such as a proﬁt share or equity-based return that substan�ally aﬀects
the risk proﬁle of the loan.
- significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.
- significant change in the interest rate.
- change in the currency the loan is denominated in and
- insertion of collaterals, other securities or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk associated
with the loan.
If the terms are substantially different, the Company derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a ‘new’
asset at fair value and recalculates a new EIR for the asset. However, the Company also assesses whether the new
financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where
the renego�a�on was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Diﬀerences in the
carrying amount are also recognised in the income statement as a modification gain or loss on derecognition.
If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition, and
the Company recalculates the gross carrying based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognised
a modification gain or loss in the income statement. The new gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting
the modified cash flows at the original EIR.
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Reclassiﬁcation of ﬁnancial assets
The Company reclassiﬁes ﬁnancial assets when and only when the business model for managing those assets changes.
Derecognition of ﬁnancial asset
A financial asset is derecognised when there is substantial modification of terms and conditions or factors other
than substantial modification.
(a) De-recogni�on due to substan�al modiﬁca�on of terms and condi�ons
The company derecognises a ﬁnancial asset when the terms and condi�ons have been renego�ated to the extent that,
substantially, it becomes a new asset, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss. The newly
recognised ﬁnancing is classiﬁed as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes.
If the modiﬁca�on does not result in cash ﬂows that are substan�ally diﬀerent, the modiﬁca�on does not result in
derecogni�on. Based on the change in cash ﬂows discounted at the original eﬀec�ve interest rate (“EIR”), the company
records a modiﬁca�on gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.
(b) De-recogni�on other than for substan�al modiﬁca�on
A ﬁnancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of ﬁnancial asset or part of a group of similar ﬁnancial assets) is derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive that cash ﬂows from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred
and either the Company neither transfers nor retains substan�ally all the risks and rewards of ownership.
(h) Financial liabilities
Financial liabili�es are measured at amor�sed cost, except for trading liabili�es designated at fair value, which are
held at FVTPL. Financial liabili�es are ini�ally recognised at fair value plus transac�on costs for all ﬁnancial liabili�es not
carried at FVTPL. Financial liabili�es at FVTPL are ini�ally recognised at fair value, and transac�on costs are expensed
in the statement of comprehensive income. Financial liabili�es are derecognised when ex�nguished.
(1) Recogni�on and ini�al measurement
Other ﬁnancial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Other ﬁnancial liabili�es are ini�ally recognised at fair value plus transac�on costs. Subsequently, other ﬁnancial liabili�es
are remeasured at amor�sed cost using the eﬀec�ve interest method.
(2) De-recogni�on
Financial liabili�es are derecognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise ex�nguished.
(i) Oﬀsetting ﬁnancial instrument
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingents on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the events of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy.
(j) Other receivables
Trade receivable are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. Other
receivables generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Company. If collection is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, where they are recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Other receivables
are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes and duties.
After recognition, trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method, less loss allowance. See accounting policy Note 2(g) on impairment of financial assets.
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(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insigniﬁcant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisi�on.
(l) Other payables
Trade and other payables represents liabilities for goods or services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payable are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after reporting period. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred, which include
transfer taxes and duties.
Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortise cost using effective interest method.
(m) Financial guarantees contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The fair value
of a financial guarantee at the time of issuance is zero because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future
premium is recognised.
Subsequently the financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of:
- The amount of the loss allowance and
- The premium received on initial recognition less income recognised in accordance with the principles of CIFRS 15.
(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to se�le the obliga�on and a reliable es�mate can be made. Where the �me value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an ou�low of economic beneﬁts will be required, or the amount cannot be es�mated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as con�ngent liabili�es unless the probability of ou�low of economic beneﬁts is
remote.
(o) Share capital
Ordinary shares are equity instruments. An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are recorded at all proceeds received, net
of directly attributable incremental transaction costs. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the
period in which they are declared.
(p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the services in the ordinary
course of the Company’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and
amounts collected on behalf of third parties and after eliminating sales within the Company.
(i) Guarantee fees are recognised on an accrual basis propor�onately over the period of the respec�ve guarantees.
(ii) Interest income is recognised using eﬀec�ve interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the company reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the es�mated future cash ﬂow discounted at the original eﬀec�ve
original eﬀec�ve interest rate of the instrument, and con�nues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired receivables are recognised using the original eﬀec�ve interest rate.
(iii) Other interest income, including amor�sa�on of premiums or accre�on of discounts, is recognised on a �me propor�on
basis that takes into account the eﬀec�ve yield of the asset.
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(q) Grant
Grant is recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the Company will comply
with the condi�ons a�ached to the grant. Grant is recognised in the proﬁt or loss on a systema�c basis over the periods
in which the Company recognises as expense/asset the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate.
The grant is from United Na�ons Capital Development Fund and is presented as deferred income in the statement of
ﬁnancial posi�on.
(r) Employee beneﬁts
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contribu�ons to deﬁned contribu�on re�rement plans and the cost of
non-monetary beneﬁts are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or se�lement is deferred and the eﬀect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
(s) Income tax
Income tax on the proﬁt or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised
in proﬁt or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised outside proﬁt or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity in which the tax is also recognised outside proﬁt or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respec�vely).
Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income for the current year, using tax rates enacted
or substan�vely enacted at the end of the repor�ng period, and any adjustment to tax payable or recoverable in respect
of previous years.
Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary diﬀerences at the end of the repor�ng period
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabili�es and their carrying amounts in the ﬁnancial statements except where
the deferred income tax arises from the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transac�on that is not a
business combina�on, and at the �me of the transac�on, aﬀects neither the accoun�ng nor taxable proﬁt or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proﬁt will be available against which
the deduc�ble temporary diﬀerences can be u�lised.
Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is se�led, based on currently enacted or substan�vely enacted tax rates at the end of the repor�ng
period.
(t) Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transac�ons during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transac�on dates.
Monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of repor�ng period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in proﬁt and loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabili�es that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transac�on dates. Non-monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.
(u) Fair value measurement
Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transac�ons, is determined as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at
the measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transac�on to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, inthe most advantageous market.
For a non-ﬁnancial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market par�cipant’s ability to generate economic
beneﬁts by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market par�cipant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair
value is categorised into diﬀerent levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the input used in the valua�on technique as
follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es that the Company can access at the
measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfers.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW CIFRSs AND AMENDMENTS/IMPROVEMENTS TO CIFRSs
3.1 Amendments/Improvements to published standards that are eﬀective
The Company has applied the following amendments/improvements for the ﬁrst �me for the ﬁnancial year beginning on
1 January 2021:
Amendments/Improvements to CIFRSs
CIFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

CIFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

CIFRS 9

Financial Instruments

CIFRS 16

Leases*

CIAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

* Early adopted the amendments to CIFRS 16 Leases
The adop�on of amendments/improvements listed above did not have any impact on the current period or any prior
period and is not likely to aﬀect the future periods.
3.2 Standards and amendments/improvements that have been issued but not yet eﬀective
The Company has not adopted the following new standards and amendments/improvements that have been issued
but not yet effective:
Eﬀective for ﬁnancial periods beginning on or after
New Standard
CIFRS 17

Insurance Contracts

1 January 2023

Amendments/Improvements
CIFRS 1
CIFRS 3
CIFRS 5
CIFRS 7
CIFRS 9
CIFRS 10
CIFRS 15
CIFRS 16
CIFRS 17
CIAS 1

First-time Adoption of Cambodian International
Financial Reporting Standards
Business Combinations

1 January 2022^/
1 January 2023#
1 January 2022/
1 January 2023#

Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Financial Instruments

1 January 2023#

Consolidated Financial Statements
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Leases
Insurance Contracts
Presentation of Financial Instruments

CIAS 7
CIAS 8

Statement of Cash Flows
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors
CIAS 12 Income Taxes
CIAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
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1 January 2023#
1 January 2022^/
1 January 2023#
Deferred
1 January 2023#
1 January 2022^
1 January 2023
1 January 2023/
1 January 2023#
1 January 2023#
1 January 2023
1 January 2023
1 January 2022/
1 January 2023#

CIAS 19
CIAS 28

Employee Benefits
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

CIAS 32
CIAS 36
CIAS 37

Financial Instruments: Presentation
Impairment of Assets
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

CIAS 38
CIAS 40
CIAS 41

Intangible Assets
Investment Property
Agriculture

1 January 2023#
Deferred/
1 January 2023#
1 January 2023#
1 January 2023#
1 January 2022/
1 January 2023#
1 January 2023#
1 January 2023#
1 January 2022^

^ The Annual Improvements to CIFRS Standards 2018-2020
# Amendments as to the consequent of effective CIFRS 17 insurance Contracts
The Company plans to adopt the above applicable standards and amendments/improvements when they become
eﬀec�ve. A brief discussion on the above signiﬁcant standards and amendments/improvements that may be applicable
to the Company are summarised below.
Annual Improvements to CIFRS Standards 2018-2020
Annual Improvements to CIFRS Standards 2018-2020 covers amendments to:
• CIFRS 1 First-�me Adop�on of Cambodian Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards – simpliﬁes the applica�on of CIFRS 1
CIFRS 1 by a subsidiary that becomes a ﬁrst-�me adopter a�er its parent in the rela�on to the measurement of cumula�ve
transla�on diﬀerences.
• CIFRS 9 Financial Instruments – clariﬁes the fees an en�ty includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modiﬁed ﬁnancial liability are substan�ally diﬀerent from the terms of the original ﬁnancial liability.
• Illustra�ve Examples accompanying CIFRS 16 Leases – deletes from Illustra�ve Example 13 the reimbursement rela�ng to
rela�ng to leasehold improvements in order to remove any poten�al confusion regarding the treatment of lease incen�ves.
• CIAS 41 Agriculture – removes a requirement to exclude cash ﬂows from taxa�on when measuring fair value thereby
aligning the fair value measurement requirements in CIAS 41 with those in other CIFRS Standards.
Amendments to CIFRS 3 Business Combinations
The amendments update CIFRS 3 by replacing a reference to an old version of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Repor�ng with a reference to the latest version.
Amendments to CIFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and CIAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in CIFRS 10 and those in
CIAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribu�on of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transac�on involves a
business, as deﬁned in CIFRS 3. A par�al gain or loss is recognised when a transac�on involves assets that do not
cons�tute a business.
Amendments to CIAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments include specifying that an en�ty’s right to defer se�lement of a liability for at least twelve months
a�er the repor�ng period must have substance and must exist at the end of the repor�ng period; clarifying that
classiﬁca�on of liability is unaﬀected by the likelihood of the en�ty to exercise its right to defer se�lement of the
liability for at least twelve months a�er the repor�ng period; clarifying how lending condi�ons aﬀect classiﬁca�on
of a liability; and clarifying requirements for classifying liabili�es an en�ty will or may se�le by issuing its own equity
instruments.
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The amendments require an en�ty to disclose its material accoun�ng policy informa�on rather than signiﬁcant accoun�ng
policies. The amendments, amongst others, also include example of circumstances in which an en�ty is likely to consider
an accoun�ng policy informa�on to be material to its ﬁnancial statements. To support this amendments, CIFRS Prac�ce
Statement 2 was also amended to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accoun�ng policy
informa�on disclosures. The guidance and examples provided in the CIFRS 2 Prac�ce Statement 2 highlight the need to
focus on en�ty-speciﬁc informa�on and demonstrate how the four-step materiality process can address standardise (or
boilerplate) informa�on and duplica�on of requirements of CIFRSs in the accoun�ng policy informa�on disclosures.
Amendments to CIAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error
The amendments revise the deﬁni�on of accoun�ng es�mates to clarify how an en�ty should dis�nguish changes in
accoun�ng policies from changes in accoun�ng es�mates. The dis�nc�on is important because the changes in accoun�ng
es�mates are applied prospec�vely to transac�ons, other events, or condi�ons from the date of that change, but changes
in accoun�ng policies are generally also applied retrospec�vely to past transac�ons and other past events.
Amendments to CIAS 12 Income Taxes
The amendments specify how an en�ty should account for deferred tax on transac�ons such as leases and decommissioning
obliga�on.
In specified circumstances, CIAS 12 exempts and entity from recognising deferred tax when it recognises assets or
liabilities for the first time. There had been some uncertainties about whether the exemption from recognising
deferred tax applied to transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations – transactions for which an
entity recognises both an assets and liability. The amendments clarify that the exemption does not apply and that
entity is required to recognise deferred tax on such transactions.
Amendments to CIAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts
received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity
shall recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.
Amendments to CIAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
The amendments specify which costs an entity includes in determining the cost of fulfilling a contract for the
purpose of assessing whether the contract is onerous.
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
Signiﬁcant areas of es�ma�on, uncertainty and cri�cal judgements in applying accoun�ng policies that have signiﬁcant
eﬀect in determining the amount recognised in the ﬁnancial period include the following:
(a) Functional currency
Judgement is applied in determining the functional currency wherever the indications are mixed. The Company
uses, in hierarchy, revenue indicators as the primary basis, followed by purchase and opera�ng expense indicators, and
in the events that those indicators are not conclusive, the currency in which borrowings and funds are raised for
financing operations.
(b) Measurement of expected credit losses allowance
The measurement of ECL allowance for ﬁnancial assets measured at amor�sed cost and at FVOCI, and guarantee
schemes is an area that requires the use of signiﬁcant assump�ons about future economic condi�ons and credit behaviour
of customers. Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL detailed in
Note 22(a). Areas of significant judgements involved in the measurement of ECL are detailed as follows:
- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk; and
- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL.
(c) Measurement of income tax
Signiﬁcant judgement is required in determining the Company’s es�ma�on for current and deferred taxes because the
ul�mate tax liability for the Company as a whole is uncertain. When the ﬁnal outcome of the tax payable is determined
with the tax authori�es, the amounts might be diﬀerent from the ini�al es�mates of the tax payables. Such diﬀerences
may impact the current and deferred taxes in the period when such determina�on is made. The Company will make
adjustments for current or deferred taxes in respect of prior years in the current period on those diﬀerences arise.
The income tax expense of the Company is disclosed in Note 19.
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5. OTHER RECEIVABLES

USD
Invoice accrual from guarantee fees
Accrued interest income
Prepayment

31.12.2021

KHR’000

10,639
9,083,878
4,094

43,343
37,007,719
16,679

9,098,611

37,067,741

6. TERM DEPOSITS
Term deposits are with financial institutions with maturity term of 12 months and earned interest ranging from
6.50% to 7.75% per annum.
7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software work in progress
USD

Cost
At 3 November 2020
Additions
At 31 December 2021
KHR’000

60,000
60,000
244,440

8. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
At 3 November 2020
Additions
At 31 December 2021
Accumulated depreciation
At 3 November 2020
Depreciation charged for
the financial period
At 31 December 2021
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021
KHR’000

Furniture
and ﬁxture
USD

Oﬃce
equipment
USD

Computer
and equipment
USD

Work in
progress

26,097
26,097

304,443
304,443

331,495
331,495

-

-

-

-

-

17
17

15
15

1,870
1,870

-

1,902
1,902

488
1,988

435
1,772

24,227
98,701

304,443
1,240,301

329,593
1,342,762

505
505

450
450

9. OTHER PAYABLES
Guarantee fee due unearned
Deferred income - Grant
Other tax liabilities
Accruals
Other payable

Total
USD

31.12.2021
USD

KHR’000

112,307
99,961
10,506
61,993
43,689

457,539
407,241
42,801
252,559
177,990

328,456

1,338,130

USD

KHR’000

37,263

151,809

10. EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES FOR GUARANTEEE SCHEMES
Expected credit losses “ECL” Stage 1
At 3 November 2020
Allowance made during the financial period
Exchange differences
At 31 December 2021

37,261
2

151,578
231
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11. PROVISION FOR SENIORITY INDEMNITY

At 3 November 2020
Provision made during the financial period
Exchange differences
At 31 December 2021

USD

KHR’000

30,612
30,612

124,530
183
124,713

This represents provision for seniority indemnity payments required by Prakas No. 443 issued by the Ministry of
Labour and Vocational Training (“MoLVT”) on 21 September 2018, and subsequently amended by the Instruction
No. 042/19 dated 22 March 2019. It requires all employers to settle the seniority indemnity to their employee as
follows:
Employees employed under a fixed duration contract (“FDC”) are entitled to severance pay, proportional to their
wages and the duration of the contract. The exact severance amount may be determined in a collective bargaining
agreement, but if it is not, the severance pay will be set at 5% of the wages employees have been entitled to during
the duration of their contract.
The duration of an FDC cannot be longer than two years. The FDC may be renewed or extended one or more times
as long as the total duration of all renewals or extensions does not exceed two years. If an FDC exceeds such limits,
it automatically becomes an unfixed duration contract (“UDC”). Employers who have been using FDCs that exceed
the maximum duration will have those FDCs become UDCs and must then pay seniority payments from the date that
the FDC became a UDC, in accordance with Prakas No. 443 and other applicable regulations.
12. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares,
Issued and fully paid
At 3 November 2020 /
31 December 2021
USD Equivalent

No of shares

810,000

Par value / share
KHR

1,000,000

Total
KHR

810,000,000,000
200,000,000

The shares are held by the Minister of Economics and Finance, in accordance with Royal Decree NS/RKM/0696/03 dated
17 June 1996 and Sub-Decree No. 140 ANKR.BK dated 1 September 2020."
13. EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES
Exchange diﬀerences arise from the transla�on of the ﬁnancial statements from USD amounts into KHR as per Note 2(b).
14. REVENUE

Guarantee fees
15. INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest income
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3.11.2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31.12.2021
USD
KHR’000
61,510

250,223

3.11.2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31.12.2021
USD
KHR’000
9,684,481

39,396,469

16. OTHER INCOME
Other income - Grant

3.11.2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31.12.2021
USD
KHR’000
49,919

203,070

17. PERSONNEL COSTS (INCLUSIVE OF KEY MANAGEMENT)

3.11.2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31.12.2021
USD
KHR’000
Wages and salaries
Other benefits
Provision for seniority indemnity
Key management personnel (Note 21)

134,823
18,553
6,081
701,044

548,459
75,474
24,738
2,851,847

860,501

3,500,518

18. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following items have been charged/(credited)
in arriving at profit before tax:

3.11.2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31.12.2021
KHR’000
USD

Depreciation of property plant and equipment (Note 8)
Short-term lease (Note 21)
Other tax expenses**
Net realised foreign exchange loss
Net unrealised foreign exchange loss

1,902
285,282
607,644
10,963
239,591

7,737
1,160,527
2,471,896
44,597
974,656

**Included in other tax expenses is withholding tax on interest income from term deposits during the ﬁnancial
period of USD601,884.
19. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

3.11.2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31.12.2021
USD
KHR’000
Gross credit guarantee fee billed
Income tax using statutory rate at 5%

172,210
8,611

700,550
35,030

Under the Cambodian Law on Taxation and with circular No. 19362 GDT issued by GDT on 23 November 2021,
the Company has an obligation to pay:
• Corporate income tax at 5% of the gross credit guarantee fee billed in the tax year in rela�on to the guarantee
services of risk in Cambodia.
• Corporate income tax at 20% of any taxable profits that are not attributable to guarantee services activities
(non-guarantee income).
Interest income earned from deposits with financial institutions, grant and subsidiary are not subject to tax on
proﬁt in accordance with the Company’s request le�er No. 015/22 CGCC submi�ed to the Ministry of Economy
and Finance on 25 January 2022 and approved by the Minister of Ministry of Economy and Finance on 31
January 2022.
20. TAXATION CONTINGENCIES
The taxation system in Cambodia is relatively new and is characterised by numerous taxes and frequently changing
legisla�on, which is o�en unclear, contradictory, and subject to interpreta�on. O�en, diﬀering interpreta�ons exist among
numerous taxa�on authori�es and jurisdic�ons. Taxes are subject to review and inves�ga�on by a number of authori�es,
who are enabled by law to impose severe ﬁnes, penal�es and interest charges.
These facts may create tax risks in Cambodia, substan�ally more signiﬁcant than in other countries. Management
believes that it has adequately provided for tax liabilities based on its interpretation of tax legisla�on. However, the
relevant authorities may have differing interpretations and the effects could be significant.
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21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if the Company
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company and the party are subject to
common control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
Related par�es also include key management personnel deﬁned as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company either directly or indirectly and an entity that
provides key management personnel services to the Company. The key management personnel include all the
Directors of the Company, all executive committees and state controller (assigned by the Shareholder as an advisor
to the Company).
The Company’s related parties include key management personnel as well as the Government of Cambodia and its
related entities as the Company is wholly-owned by the Government of Cambodia.
Significant transactions with related parties
In addi�on to the transac�ons detailed elsewhere in the ﬁnancial statements, the Company had the following transac�ons
with related par�es during the ﬁnancial period from 3 November 2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31 December 2021:
General Department of Customs and Exercise
Short-term lease
Key management compensation
Directors’ remuneration
State-controller
Key management compensation
(excluding directors and state-controller)
Wages and salaries
Provision for seniority indemnity
Other benefits

USD

KHR’000

285,282

1,160,527

146,712
12,960

596,824
52,721

499,253
24,531
17,588

2,030,961
99,792
71,548

701,044

2,851,846

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments
Other receivables (excluding prepayment), cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, other payables (excluding
guarantee fee due unearned, deferred income – grant and tax liabili�es) and expected credit losses for guarantee
schemes are categorised as amortised cost.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks arising from its operations and the use of ﬁnancial
instruments. The key ﬁnancial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Company’s overall
financial risk management objective is to ensure that the Company creates value for its shareholders. Financial risk
management is carried out through risk reviews, internal control system and adherence to the Company’s financial risk
management policies.
( a ) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of ﬁnancial loss to the Company that may arise on outstanding ﬁnancial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obliga�ons. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from it opera�ng ac�vi�es (other
receivables) and from its ﬁnancing ac�vi�es including deposits with ﬁnancial ins�tu�ons.
For other receivables and other ﬁnancial assets (including cash and cash equivalents), the Company minimises credit risk
by dealing exclusively with high credit ra�ng counterpar�es. At the repor�ng date, the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk arising from other receivables and other ﬁnancial assets is represented by the carrying amount of each class of
ﬁnancial assets recognised in the statement of ﬁnancial posi�on.
For ﬁnancial guarantees granted, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Company would
have to pay if the guarantees were to be called upon. For credit related commitments and con�ngencies, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is full amount of the undrawn credit facili�es granted to customers.
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”)
The Company uses three categories for ﬁnancial instruments in recognising ECL which reﬂect the credit risk and how the
loss allowance is determined for each of those categories. A summary of assump�ons underpinning the Company’s ECL
model is as follows:

59

CGCC ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Category

Deﬁni�on of category

Basis for recognising ECL

Stage 1
(Performing)

Financial Guarantees ECL
Newly issued

12 month ECL

Stage 2
(Underperforming)

Financial Guarantees
- All restructured and rescheduled accounts;
- Accounts with Signiﬁcant PD change;
- Accounts with related Non Performing Loan (“NPL”);
- Watchlist accounts.

Life�me ECL

Stage 3
(Impaired)

Financial Guarantees

Life�me ECL

(i) Obligatory triggers:
- 90 days past due;
- Leakage, cessa�on of contracts or cessa�on of
business
(j) Ra�ng downgrade as follows:
- Default in paying principal or interest according to
the repayment schedule
- Cease opera�on/ﬁling of bankruptcy
- Winding up order (upon no�ce, includes borrowers
and par�es who provide source of repayment)
- Material fraud with publicised news or upon
appointment of ﬁnancial advisor.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
At 31 December 2021

USD

Credit risk exposures of on-balance sheet assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Term deposits
Credit risk exposures of off-balance sheet item
Financial guarantees
Total maximum credit risk exposure

KHR’000

9,094,517
3,731,892
193,912,610

37,051,062
15,203,728
789,999,973

206,739,019

842,254,763

14,905,025
221,644,044

60,723,072
902,977,835

( b ) Liquidity risk
The Company’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
suﬃcient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The following table details the remaining contractual maturi�es at the end of repor�ng period of the Company’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the
Company can be required to pay:

At 31 December 2021
Other payables
Expected credit loss
for guarantee schemes
Provision for seniority
indemnity

Carrying amount
USD
KHR’000

Total
USD

Within 1 year
or on demand
USD

Between
1 and 5 years
USD

105,682

430,548

105,682

105,682

-

37,263

151,809

37,263

37,263

-

30,612

124,713

30,612

-

30,612

173,557

707,070

173,557

142,945

30,612
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( c ) Foreign currency risks
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the
func�onal currency of the Company. The management monitors the foreign currency exposure on an on-going basis.
Whilst the Company’s opera�ng results are subject to the eﬀect of change in exchange rate, the Company’s constantly
monitors the net eﬀect of its transac�ons in the same currency to minimise the exposure to foreign currency exchange risk.
The Company’s unhedged financial assets and liabilities that are not denominated in its functional currency are as
follows:

Khmer Riel
USD

United States
Dollar
USD

TOTAL
USD

2,348,878
9,084,234
193,912,610

1,383,014
10,282
-

3,731,892
9,094,516
193,912,610

205,345,722

1,393,296

206,739,018

Financial liabilities
Other payables
Expected credit losses for guarantee
schemes

(3,702)
-

105,682
(33,561)
(30,612)

105,682
(37,263)
(30,612)

Provision for seniority indemnity

(3,702)

41,509

37,807

Net asset/(liability) position

205,342,020

1,351,787

206,701,211

KHR’000 equivalents

836,563,389

5,507,180

842,100,734

At 31 December 2021
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Term deposits

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
The following table set out the analysis of the exposure to assess the impact of a 1% change in the exchange rates:

At 31 December 2021

USD
Increase/(Decrease)

KHR’000
Increase/(Decrease)

(504,030)

(2,053,418)

504,030

2,050,394

Khmer Riel
Strengthened by 1%
Weakended by 1%
( d ) Fair value
The different levels have been defined as follows:
• Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).
• Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).
• Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities are approximate to their fair value due to the relatively
short-term nature of these financial instruments.
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23. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that they maintain a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ra�o in order to support its businesses and maximises shareholder value. The Company manages its
capital structure and make adjustments to it. In light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the financial period.
24. COMMITMENTS
( a ) The Company has made commitments for the following capital expenditure:

USD
Software work in progress

363,000

( b ) Lease commitment-as leasee

USD
Short-term lease

31.12.2021

KHR’000
1,478,862

31.12.2021

71,216

KHR’000
290,136

25. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
No comparative figures are presented as this is the first set of Financial Statements of the Company.
26. COVID-19 PANDEMIC
The World Health Organisation declared the outbreak of Covid-19 as a global pandemic in March 2020. The direct
and indirect effects of the Covid-19 outbreak have impacted the global economy, markets and the Company’s
counterparties and clients.
The Covid-19 effects have a material negative impact on the Company’s results of operations. In particular, the
process to determine expected credit losses requires numerous estimates and assumptions, some of which require
a high degree of judgement. Changes in the es�mates and assump�ons can result in signiﬁcant changes in ECL. The
Company in not able to predict the Covid-19’s potential future direct or indirect effects.
Overall, the Company is taking actions to mitigate the impacts, and will continue to closely monitor the impact and
the related risks as they evolve.
27. SIGNIFICANT EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL PERIOD
The Company had on 27 January 2022 entered into a Techno Interna�onal Airport ("TIA") Guaranteed Bond Agreement
with Cambodia Airport Investment Co., Ltd. ("the TIA Guaranteed Bond Issuer") and Overseas Cambodian Investment
Corpora�on Ltd. ("the TIA Guaranteed Bond Guarantor"), as a TIA Guaranteed Bondholder for a 3 years bond of KHR8
billion, with coupon rate of 5.5% p.a. and maturity on 27 January 2025.
28. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2022.
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Company No: Co. 0003ET/2020
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
CREDIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION OF CAMBODIA PLC. “CGCC”
(Incorporated in Cambodia)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of CREDIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION OF CAMBODIA PLC. “CGCC” (“the
Company”), which comprise the statement of ﬁnancial posi�on as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company
for the financial period from 3 November 2020 (date of incorporation) to 31 December 2021, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 44 to 52.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the financial period from
3 November 2020 (date of incorpora�on) to 31 December 2021 in accordance with the Cambodian Interna�onal Financial
Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs”).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Cambodian Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (“CISAs”). Our responsibili�es
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and the requirements of
Kampuchea Institute of Certified Public Accountant and Auditors’ Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants
and Auditors (“KICPAA Code”). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code and ethical requirements of KICPAA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors’ Report (but does not include the financial statements of the Company and our auditors’ report which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditors‘ report, and other sections included in the annual report, which are
expected to made available to us after that date.
Our opinion on the ﬁnancial statements of the Company does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with financial
statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other informa�on that we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report on this regard.
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Company that
give a true and fair view in accordance with the Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards. The
management is also responsible for such internal controls as the management determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance of the Company is responsible for overseeing the Company’s ﬁnancial repor�ng process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Company as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with CISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with CISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scep�cism
throughout the audit. We also:

- iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the ﬁnancial statements of the Company, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

- conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast signiﬁcant
doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw a�en�on in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements of the Company
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue
as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Company, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Our PFIs
Tel : 023 225 333

Tel : 023 862 111

Email : info@ababank.com

Email : info@�bbank.com

Web : www.ababank.com

Web : www.�bbank.com

Tel : 023 998 777

Tel : 023 999 000

Email : acledabank@ acledabank.com.kh

Email : ccc@jtrustroyal.com

Web : www.acledabank.com.kh

Web : www. jtrustroyal.com

Tel : 023 220 202

Tel : 023 991 991

Email : customerservice@amkcambodia.com

Email : info@lolc.com.kh

Web : www.amkcambodia.com

Web : www.lolc.com.kh

Tel : 023 999 033

Tel : 098 888 028

Email : info@amret.com.kh

Email : contactus.mcp@maybank.com

Web : www.amret.com.kh

Web : www.maybank2u.com.kh

Tel : 023 211 888

Tel : 086 930 000

Email : info@apdbank.com.kh

Email : info@phillipbank.com.kh

Web : www.apdbank.com.kh

Web : www.phillipbank.com.kh

Tel : 023 999 222

Tel : 023 909 909

Email : contact@bredcambodia.com

Email : enquiry@ppcb.com.kh

Web : www.bredcambodia.com

Web : www.ppcbank.com.kh

Tel : 023 260 888

Tel : 1800-20-8888

Email : info@cambodiapostbank.com

Email : info@princebank.com.kh

Web : www.cambodiapostbank.com

Web : www.princebank.com.kh

Tel : 023 533 9999

Tel : 023 992 833

Email : info@camma.com.kh

Email : hello@rhbgroup.com

Web : www.camma.com.kh

Web : www.rhbgroup.com.kh

Tel : 023 868 222

Tel : 023/081 999 010

Email : contact@canadiabank.com

Email : customercare@sathapana.com.kh

Web : www.canadiabank.com.kh

Web : www.sathapana.com.kh

Tel : 023 959 777

Tel : 023 999 989

Email : info@chamroeun.com

Email : care.centre@wingmoney.com

Web : www.chamroeun.com

Web : www.wingmoney.com
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Improve Financial Inclusion
and Develop SMEs in Cambodia

www.cgcc.com.kh
Business Development Center, 19th Floor, OCIC Blvd,
Sangkat Chroy Changvar, Khan Chroy Changvar, Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Contact Us
023 722 123

�ជ�វកម��នាឥណទានកម��ជាCGCC

info@cgcc.com.kh

Credit Guarantee Corpora�on of Cambodia Plc. ( CGCC )

www.cgcc.com.kh

�ជ�វកម��នាឥណទានកម��ជា Credit Guarantee Corpora�on of Cambodia

